
 

 

Energy Committee Meeting Minutes 

  October 3, 2011                                    1 

 

     New London Energy Committee 

 
October 3, 2011, 7:00pm 

 

Meeting Minutes 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Jack Harrod (Chair), Bill Spear (Vice Chair), Alison Seward, Margie Weathers, 

Dave Harris, Brian Armentrout, Mike Meller, Peter Stanley ex officio (Planning & Zoning Administrator) 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Joan Cobb 

 

Chairman Harrod called the meeting to order at 7:00pm.  

 

1. Minutes of September 12, 2011 Meeting 

Harrod asked if there were any suggested amendments to the draft minutes of September 12, 2011, which 

he had previously circulated electronically to the members of the Energy Committee.  There were none, so 

he called for a motion to accept. 

 

IT WAS MOVED (Mike Meller) AND SECONDED (Margie Weathers) to approve the minutes from 

September 12, 2011 as circulated. THE MOTION WAS APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

2. Elkins Micro/Hydro 

Stanley said that Jay Boeri, the engineer hired for the project, had been behind schedule starting in July and 

after Hurricane Irene he was pulled away to work on bridges and dams in Vermont. The project must be 

completed by December, of which Boeri is well aware. Stanley indicated that the town has learned the 

necessary information based on Boeri’s initial review. Harrod said that it was understandable that Boeri’s 

attention should be focused on the destruction in Vermont. Stanley said that if the contract is not completed 

by the deadline, Boeri would not be paid. He also said that Boeri could tell from evidence at the Hayes dam 

that the turbine that was there at one point was a 30 HP/20KW turbine.  

 

3. Colby-Sawyer College Update 

Spear was present to represent the college and said that he hoped to become the liaison between the college 

and the Town. At the last meeting, Dave Sauerwein noted that he would be taking a leave of absence from 

the committee while working to get his Ph.D. This change in liaison could become official at the next 

meeting if it gains approval from college President Galligan. Harrod said that if this were to be the case, 

there would be room for another two members on the Energy Committee (assuming an informal but agreed 

limit of ten members to conform with state legislation which postdates the committee’s creation by town 

meeting warrant article). He asked the current members to keep their eyes out for others who may be 

interested in joining the committee. It was suggested that a student from the college may be eligible to join, 

provided he or she was an official resident of New London.   

 

4. Reusable Shopping Bags 

Weathers said that a lot of stores give a five cent discount when people use their own reusable bags. She 

talked to some businesses about giving a discount to those who don’t even use a bag. Greg Berger at 

Springledge said that 80% of his customers take a bag while about 20% either bring their own or don’t use 

one. The Kearsarge Co-Op experiences just the reverse in those who take a bag or those who bring their 

own. She thought that Gen at Ellie’s would be a good model for making changes to become more 

sustainable. Ellie’s has a lot of waste, such as Styrofoam cups, but they also have some take-out business 

too where bags would be needed. 

 

Weathers has spoken with Bernie at Huberts and Reed Clarke from Clarke’s Hardware who are both 

interested in learning more about what they may be able to do to help with the plastic bag issue.  Harrod 

said that after the Energy Committee’s last meeting there was a front-page article in the InterTown Record 



 

 

Energy Committee Meeting Minutes 

  October 3, 2011                                    2 

 

by Merry Armentrout about Colby-Sawyer becoming a single-stream recycling example for the Town. It 

also indicated that Hannaford was promoting the use of reusable shopping bags.  

 

Seward thought the reusable shopping bag issue should be subsumed within the Green Business Alliance 

initiative proposed by member Brian Armentrout. Harrod said that he is trying to compartmentalize the two 

issues because the discussion of them began at two different times. Seward thought that they could be 

separated for agenda discussions, but it made sense that they should be combined in practice.  

 

5. Green Business Alliance Proposal 

Armentrout said that there were three main issues that have come up with this discussion. One is a list of 

other possible aspects of the program that have been discovered which should be reviewed.  The second 

issue was the incentive for the businesses; they may need to offer some kind of a reward. Portsmouth gives 

their participants “green cards”, which are sold to residents of the town. The cards entitle the customers to 

discounts and bring more people in to the businesses. The third and last issue was creating an effective 

mechanism to get people excited about these green ideas. Getting children on board seemed like a good 

idea to encourage parents to think in a “green” way.  Armentrout said that it becomes viral with children 

and their peers get excited about these kinds of things and they bring the excitement home to their parents. 

Weathers felt that children should know that the Earth as they know it will change if they don’t make wise 

decisions with recycling and being green.  

 

Harrod felt that if the committee could get a few businesses in New London to make changes and get on 

board, then others would follow suit. Weathers felt that all of the restaurants in town should be looked at 

and encouraged to engage in more recycling and composting.  

 

Armentrout said that by the next meeting there should be more information to move forward with this 

project.  

 

It was noted that Armentrout ran into former committee-member Russ Aney, at a workshop in 

Massachusetts. Aney is living temporarily with family in Hudson Valley New York. He has a solar 

installation business in California and will be working between there and in the Northeast. It seemed that he 

was doing well.  Aney’s many contributions to the committee’s work were acknowledged. 

 

It was also noted that there seemed to be some problem with the solar PV panels planned to be installed at 

the Flying Goose brewpub due to the condition of the ground. Harrod felt that there might be wetland 

issues having to do with not being able to put a concrete slab in that area.  

 

Harrod added that presenting Flying Goose owner Tom Mills with the Sustainable Business plaque seemed 

to be an appropriate-enough incentive. Mills created extensive publicity for his business on his website and 

in print due to his having received the award.  

 

6. Agenda for the fall and winter 

Harrod said the committee had talked about the Green Business Alliance, SIFE and the wind turbines, and 

the Energy Fair as a planning proposal for the spring or summer. Weathers thought the committee should 

do something for Earth Day.  

 

Seward wondered where Harrod had looked to help with processing the money for the proposed green fair 

that had been discussed a year ago. Harrod said that the committee needs to find a non-profit organization 

to recycle the planned proceeds and expenditures. Seward said she wanted to take this project on to find a 

way to get past this hurdle. Spear wondered about the LSPA (Lake Sunapee. Protective Association). 

Harrod wondered about the Chamber of Commerce. Seward heard that the Recreation Department may be 

able to help. Stanley said that that organization uses a revolving account, which was an entirely different 

thing. It was noted that Jennifer White, Sustainability Coordinator at Colby-Sawyer College may have 

some ideas. Spear thought that perhaps the college could be used, as it was a non-profit organization. He 

thought perhaps SIFE could champion the project.   

 



 

 

Energy Committee Meeting Minutes 

  October 3, 2011                                    3 

 

Stanley said that non-profits are generally focused in their fields and don’t reach out to take on things that 

are not within a fairly narrow focus of objective. They have to follow their purpose, by law, when 

becoming a 501 3. c.   

 

Harris said that the Mountain Spirit Foundation held a fair at Mount Sunapee for two years and had to stop 

due to a lack of volunteer personnel. Weathers said that she didn’t think this would be a problem for a 

potential town green fair; she was confident that they could get enough volunteers. Spear asked if he should 

speak with President Galligan to see if the college could assist in this project. Harrod agreed that it would 

be fine to approach the president. 

 

7. Member Minutes 

Harrod noted that the previous weekend had featured a Green Building Open House. Harris said the 

original objective last year was to hold the committee’s green air on the same weekend as the Green 

Building Open House. The Green Building people didn’t want it on the same day, however.  

 

Harris said he created a series of mapped bicycle rides in the New London area and has given the list to a 

couple of the inns and the visitors welcome center/kiosk. The list includes a series of ten rides that originate 

in the front of the town hall, ranging from 10 miles to 44 miles. He used a website to gather this 

information that would give distance, elevation and directions to rides in whatever area desired. The 

website is called “ridedog.com.” 

 

Seward wondered if it would be appropriate to ask if the Board of Selectmen had anything they would like 

the Energy Committee to do or to research. Harrod said that he would ask the Board [a follow-up e-mail to 

the Selectboard and town administrator was sent]. 

 

Armentrout said he and his wife had walked around during Hospital Days and observed the numerous 

plastic bottles and containers that had been used and saw that there were no recycle bins anywhere. He 

thought that was something the Town could look into changing for the following year.  Everyone agreed. 

 

The next meeting was scheduled for Monday, November 7
th
. 

 

IT WAS MOVED (Mike Meller) AND SECONDED (Dave Harris) to adjourn the meeting.  

THE MOTION WAS APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:52pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Kristy Heath, Recording Secretary 

Town of New London 

 

Reviewed by Jack Harrod 

Chairman, New London Energy Committee   

   

 

 

 


